
HISTORY OF HILLSIDE 

 

Lewis A. Park commissioned construction of the house at 406 Hillside Road in 1922 
and it was completed by 1925.  The house was designed by William Boyd, Jr. of the 
“society architectural firm” Ingham & Boyd.  Hillside was a rare solo project for the 
architect.  The house was built by Sewickley contractor James M. Scott and the 
landscaping was done by William Pitkin, Jr. and Seward H. Mott. 
 
Park was the only child of steel magnate David E. Park and Mary Lewis Park. He 
remained a bachelor until his 40s when he married Frances L. Schoen.  The two lived 
year-round at Hillside, which was named after the Park’s farm “Hillside Farm” in 
Ebensburg, PA.  
 
The next owners were Maitland Alexander, Jr. and Anne Paul Alexander.  The two 
lived in the home, from 1948 to 1974.Detailed information on the history of 406 
Hillside is contained in the following report. 
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OWNERSHIP 

 

Pre-Construction 

June 22, 1920 (Allegheny County Deed Book 2024: 351): Tuxedo Land company 
conveyed 520 acres, including the land where 406 Hillside Drive would be built to 
Lewis A. Park for $1.  

November 18, 1922 (Deed Book 2136: 477): John Denny conveyed 23 acres where 
406 Hillside would be built to Lewis A. Park for $1.   

Lewis A. Park died September 7, 1946 and left the property to Frances S. Park (Will 
Book 276: 313).  Frances S. Park remarried in 1947 and took the name Frances S. 
Greene. 

January 6, 1948 (Deed Book 2987: 236): Frances S. and Orland S. Greene conveyed 
406 Hillside to Maitland Alexander, Jr. for $90,000.  The property contained 115.760 
acres. 

December 21, 1959 (Deed Book 3816: 188): Anne Paul Alexander was added to the 
title to 406 Hillside Drive.  

 Maitland Alexander Jr. died on February 15, 1973, and the property was vested in 
Anne Paul Alexander.  

December 26, 1974 (Deed Book 5445: 33): Anne P. Owsley, formerly Anne P. 
Alexander, by G. Donald Gerlach her Attorney in Fact conveyed 406 Hillside to W. 
Scott and JoAnne D. Brinker for $230,000. 

April 12, 1978 (Deed Book 5922: 65): W. Scott and Joanne D. Brinker conveyed 406 
Hillside to Hal F. and Desire Reynolds for $245,000. 

August 21, 1986 (Deed Book 7374: 500): Hal F. and Desire G. Reynolds conveyed 
406 Hillside to John R. Hess, Jr. and Sandra Hess for $425,000. 

 

On August 30, 1991, Helge H. and Erika Wehmeier purchased 406 Hillside from John 
R. Hess, Jr., and Sandra Hess (Deed Book 8559: 85).  
 
 

  



AGE OF HILLSIDE 

 

Construction  
All available information indicates that construction began on the house at 406 
Hillside Drive in 1922 and was completed by 1925. The Pittsburgh Post reported on 
February 7, 1922 that Ingham & Boyd were designing a county estate for Lewis A. 
Park in Sewickley.  An article in The Pittsburgh Press, published in May of that year 
indicates that the house was to cost $200,000 and be completed fall of 1923 
 
Many modern-day sources list the construction date of Hillside at 1927, however in 
April of 1926 Architecture – The Professional Architectural Monthly published 
photographs of the estate.  These photographs show a completed house with mature 
landscaping.  Printed media from that time would have required a lead time of at least 
a month but likely longer, and the deciduous trees in the images would not have had 
leaves if the photos were taken between January and March of 1926.  
 
However, there are no known sources providing 
concrete evidence the house was completed before 
1925. It has been rumored that Hillside took a 
number of years to complete, and there are no 
known records showing a definitive completion date.  Hillside was built to be a 
summer cottage for Park, and his parents also owned an estate in Sewickley Heights 
where Park spent much of his time, so when newspapers labeled Park as living in 
Sewickley Heights, there was no way to know if it was his own home or his parents’ 
home.  
 
A blurb published in the Pittsburgh Gazette-Times on June 25, 1926 is the first to 
specifically mention the house at 406 Hillside Drive. 
 
The contractor James M. Scott:  
Lewis A. Park hired James M. Scott to construct 
406 Hillside Drive.  James M. Scott was a 
building contractor whose business address was 
407 Centennial Avenue in Sewickley.  Scott 
lived at 613 Locust Place.  His employees 
included John Scott, a carpenter who lived at 
611 Hill Street. 
 
Other work by James M. Scott included 
construction of: 
 -903 Amberson Avenue, Shadyside, 1919 
 -1224 Shady Avenue, Squirrel Hill, 1920 

The Pittsburgh Press, May 23, 1922 

Pittsburgh Gazette-Times, June 25, 1926 



 -alterations to 630 East Drive, Edgeworth, 1925 
 -Muottas, a house built in Leetsdale for William Walker, 1926 
 -an addition to Linganore, the home of Alex Laughlin on Beaver Road  
  in Sewickley, 1926 
 -245 Frederick Avenue, Sewickley, 1928-1929 
 -the Sewickley Heights Fire and Police Department building, 1928-1929 
 -420 Woodland Road, Shadyside, 1929 
 
The Architect: The Architect William Boyd, Jr.: 
William Boyd Jr. designed buildings and houses for clients who were prominent in 
Pittsburgh's financial and social worlds.  
 
While a partner in the architectural firm of 
Ingham & Boyd, William Boyd Jr. 
participated in design of: 

-the Historical Society of Western 
Pennsylvania building, 4338 Bigelow 
Boulevard, 1912 
-the Board of Education building, 341 South Bellefield Street, Oakland, 
1926 
-Frick International Studies Academy, 107 Thackeray Street, Oakland, 
1927 
-Chatham Village, Mount Washington, 1931 and 1935 
-Jennings Memorial Chapel of St. Stephen's Episcopal Church, 
Sewickley, 1937 
-the Buhl Planetarium, North Side, 1939 

 
In addition to Hillside, work by William Boyd Jr. working alone included 
"Sunnymede," a house on Scaife Road, Sewickley Heights, 1921. William Boyd Jr. 
designed Hillside while living on Woodland Road in Edgeworth. He later resided for 
a number of years on Poia Place in Edgeworth. 
 
The landscape architects: William Pitkin, Jr. & Seward H. Mott 
William Pitkin Jr. was a prominent landscape architect, and his brother-in-law was 
Seward H. Mott. The two were originally from Rochester, New York, but moved to 
Cleveland in 1919.   The two officially began their firm “William Pitkin, Jr. & Seward 
H. Mott – Landscape Architects in 1923. 
 
The firm designed estates and subdivisions in Ohio, Western Pennsylvania and 
Western New York. Some of their more well-known projects in the Cleveland area 
include Rockefeller Park, Shaker Lakes, and Ambler Park as well as estates in 
Cleveland and Shaker Heights. The firm is best known for its work on Kingwood, the 
estate of Charles King in Mansfield, Ohio (1926).  

The Pittsburgh Post, February 7, 1922 



Both William and Seward gave up the business during the 1930s. Pitkin returned to 
Rochester to run his family’s nursery, and Mott moved to Washington D. C. to 
become a lobbyist to promote national policies for neighborhood planning.    
 
Architectural style 
William Boyd, Jr. designed Hillside in the Georgian Eclectic style, a 
variation of the Colonial Revival Style. Colonial Revival homes, built in the 
Pittsburgh area between the late 1890's and the 1930's, used features common to 
Georgian, Adam, and Dutch Colonial houses built in the American colonies and 
United States until the 1840's.  
 
Georgian Revival features of 406 Hillside Drive include the house's side-gabled 
arrangement; its main block, measuring six bays wide, with a centered, pedimented 
entrance, and three dormer windows across the top.   
 
The whimsical turret was built for practical use.  The lower level contained an ice 
storage room off the kitchen and the upper level was a water tank, which purportedly 
supplied the sprinkler system.  
 

  



LEWIS A. AND FRANCES S. PARK 

 

Lewis Anderson Park was born on August 9, 1886. He was the only child of steel 
magnate David E. Park and Mary Lewis Park.  He grew up in the family home on 
North Avenue in Allegheny City, which was located where Allegheny General 
Hospital is today.  As an adult in the 1920s, Park would donate a portion of the family 
estate to the hospital.   
 
When Park was a young child he attended Allegheny 
Preparatory School, and as a teen attended St. Paul’s 
school in Concord, New Hampshire.  He completed his 
education at Yale University and then returned to 
Pittsburgh, where he dabbled in many business interests, 
eventually becoming director of the Union Trust 
Company and owner of the Park Building in Downtown 
Pittsburgh.  
 
When the United States joined World War I in 1917, 
Park decided to serve his country.  On January 28, 1918, 
he showed up at his local recruiting station and joined 
the navy.  He was given the rank of  
Second Class Seaman and served his tour in 
Philadelphia from February 19 to November 11, 1918.  
 
Park remained a bachelor until his 40s when he married 
Frances Schoen.  Frances was born in Pittsburgh on 
November 4, 1905 and had been raised in a house on 
Woodland Road in Shadyside.  Her father William Henry Schoen had founded the 
Schoen Pressed Steel Company, which manufactured rail car components. After 

finishing school, Frances spent her 
days traveling with her family and 
performing in charity revues when 
she was home.  
 
Lewis and Frances were married 
in a small ceremony held in her 

parents’ living room on February 5, 1928.  After the wedding they honeymooned “in 
the east,” for a few weeks before setting up household at Hillside.  
 

The Pittsburgh Press, November 6, 1927 

Frances Schoen in the Junior League 
Musical Review, published in The 

Pittsburgh Press, November 23, 1924 



The 1930 census was the first taken at Hillside.  Neither Lewis nor Frances listed an 
occupation. The house was tended to by five live-in servants.  Karl Kusser, 38, was 
the butler. He had immigrated from Germany in 1907.  The cook was Stella Patton, 
34. Stella was a native of Pennsylvania.  Susanne Jreleak, 34, had immigrated from 
Czechoslovakia in 1911.  She worked as the family’s laundress.  Martino Chirumbolo, 
39, was the only married servant, although his wife did not live with him.  He had 
immigrated from Italy in 1909. Sallie Wattenpole, 17, worked as a maid.  She was a 
native of Pennsylvania.  
 
The Parks had an active social life during the 1930s.  They participated in horse 

shows and dog shows and threw 
dinner parties at their home.  
They lived at Hillside when 
they were in Western 
Pennsylvania, but every year 
after the holidays, they would 
go to their winter home in 
Aiken, South Carolina.  

 
At the time of the 1940 census, the Parks were staying at Hillside. Only two of their 
servants from 1930 were still employed by the Parks.  Martino Chirumbolo had been 
promoted to the position of butler. The census 
reported he had a sixth-grade education, worked 
40 hours per week and earned $1,920 per year. 
Sallie Wattenpole seems to have been demoted 
from maid to laundress. She had a high school 
degree and worked 28 hours per week, earning 
$650 per year.  
 
Patick Lalley, 30, worked 72 hours per week as a 
companion, earning $2,100 per year. He was 
single, a native of Pennsylvania, and had a college 
degree from Duquesne University.  There were 
also two chambermaids: Louise Barg, a 60-year-
old widow, and Julia Carnic, who was 55 and 
single. Both women were natives of Pennsylvania 
and had eighth-grade educations. Louise worked 
70 hours per week and earned $940 per year; Julia 
worked 62 hours per week and earned $860 
annually.  

Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, September 19, 1946 

Pittsburgh Sun-Telegraph, June 30, 1928 



In 1944, Lewis was diagnosed with carcinoma of 
the neck.  Despite surgeries at the Doctor’s 
Hospital of New York, he succumbed to the 
disease on September 7, 1946. He was 60 years 
old.   
 
A little over a year later on November 15, 1947 
Frances married Orland S. Greene a friend of her 
brother.  They sold Hillside and spent their time 
between homes in the Hamptons, Palm Beach, 
and Barbados.  

The couple spent fourteen years together. Orland 
died of cancer on December 14, 1961. A year 
later, Frances also succumbed to cancer and 
passed away on November 6, 1962, at the age of 
57. They are buried in Southampton Cemetery in 
Southampton, New York. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

The Palm Beach Post, November 8, 1962 



MAITLAND ALEXANDER, JR. AND ANNE PAUL ALEXANDER 
 

Maitland Alexander, Jr. purchased Hillside in 1948.  He was the son of Rev. Dr. 
Maitland Alexander and Madelaine Laughlin Alexander.  His father was the 
prominent pastor of the First Presbyterian Church of Pittsburgh, and his mother was 
an heiress from both the Jones and Laughlin families.   
 
Maitland Jr. was born on May 21, 1908 and raised in his family’s Ridge Avenue 
mansion.  In 1928, he and his family moved full-time to their Sewickley Heights 
estate, “Poplar Hill.” After finishing high school at St. Paul’s school, he attended 
Princeton University, graduating in 1930 and then medical school at the Columbia 
College of Physicians and Surgeons, graduating in 1943. 
 
He remained a bachelor until 1946 when he married Anne Paul Clark.  Anne was a 
great-granddaughter of Anthony Joseph Drexel, the founder of both Drexel University 
and Drexel, Morgan & Company, which would be renamed J. P. Morgan & Co., after 
Drexel’s death.   
 
This was Anne’s second marriage. Her first husband, Louis Crawford Clark served in 
the Navy during World War II and had been killed in a plane crash.  The couple had 
only been married for a year at the time.   
 
Maitland and Anne were married on June 1, 1946 in Long Island New York. Anne 
had one young son from her first marriage, Louis.  The couple moved into Hillside in 
1948 and started their own family.  Their first son was born in July, just a few months 
after they purchased the home.  
 
The 1950 census shows the Alexanders in their home.  Maitland, 41, reported he 
worked 48 hours a week as a surgeon and earned $10,000 per year.  Anne did not 
work outside the home.  The enumerator reported that Anne had three children: Louis 
was 7 and in school, Charles was 2, and Maitland had just been born in July.   
 
The family employed four servants who lived in the home with them. Madalene 
Dodge was single, 40, and hailed from Maine. All the other servants were natives of 
Pennsylvania.  Dodge was the family’s nurse and worked 72 hours per week.  She 
was randomly selected to report income information, which was $1,530 per year.   
Anna Brewer, 50, worked 48 hours per week as the cook.  She was married but did 
not live with her husband.  Sally Batalic, 30, was single and worked 48 hours per 
week as a chambermaid, and Frances Kirk, 32 was married and worked 60 hours a 



week as the downstairs maid.  
 
The 1950 census is the last census that provides information on occupants of Hillside. 
Manuscript census records are withheld from public view for 72 years, to protect the 
privacy of persons who were enumerated. 
 
 

 

  



SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS 

 

The following materials accompany this report: 

- A copy of part of a plat map of the area around 406 Hillside Drive, published in 
1940. 

- Photographs of 406 Hillside Drive published in Architecture – The Professional 
Architectural Monthly, April 1926.  

- The obituary of architect William Boyd, from The Pittsburgh Press, March 4, 1947.  

- The obituary of contractor James M. Scott from The Pittsburgh Press, January 19, 
1948. 

- “Attractive Late Winter Weddings Solemnized,” from The Pittsburgh Press, 
February 5, 1928.  

- “Hospital Donor,” from the Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, November 3, 1928. 

- “Cool Pools in Gardens,” from The Pittsburgh Press, June 16, 1968.  

- “Sewickley Heights Proposal Snagged,” from the Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, August 
22, 1985.  

- “Mansions: Restoration blends past with present,” from The Pittsburgh Press, April 
12, 1987.  
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The Pittsburgh Press, June 16, 1968 

 

  



Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, August 22, 1985 

 

  



The Pittsburgh Press, April 12, 1987

 

 

  



The Pittsburgh Press, April 12, 1987 (continued) 

 



The Pittsburgh Press, April 12, 1987 (continued) 

 


